
Questions and Answers Relative to the  
Wayfinding Signs Design and Fabrication  

Request for Proposals 
Optional Pre-Proposal Meeting – August 24, 2017, 10:00 a.m. 

 
 

Diane Murzynski, Purchasing Coordinator, opened the meeting at 10:00 a.m.  Those in 
attendance were: Ed Hodney, Parks & Recreation Director/Interim Urban Renewal 
Director; Michelle Pierson, ES&A Sign and Awning; Kim Shook, Foress Sign and 
Manufacturing; and Joey Vazquez, Cascade Sign Services. 
 
All RFP documents are posted on the City of Albany’s website. Any changes made as a 
result of the meeting would be added or deleted from the scope of services by addenda. 
There were no changes made to the RFP as a result of this meeting. No additional 
addenda will be posted.   
 
The RFP was advertised on August 7, 2017. Sealed proposals are due Tuesday, 
August 29, 2017, at 2:00 p.m. The proposals will be evaluated the middle of September. 
The contract award will be sent to City Council for approval approximately at the end of 
September 2017.  
 
This meeting was an optional pre-proposal meeting. The first addendum modified the 
meeting from mandatory to optional. Also, the Cost Proposal sheet was changed by 
including the following language, “The quantities the City has proposed are an 
estimated quantity for the purpose of completing this Cost Proposal. The price bid 
determines the actual quantity the City will ultimately order. The City intends to 
negotiate the final sign order with the Proposer. The Project scope of service does not 
include installation of the signs. All Project Requirements, including insurance, should 
be reviewed and incorporated in this Cost Proposal.” 
 
Ed Hodney provided an overview of the project history. Draft specifications and 
drawings were prepared by Ambrosini. The estimated cost the City received for 
fabrication was higher than what was anticipated. Therefore, an RFP was prepared 
using the draft specifications for interested proposers to respond. The goal is to obtain 
cost efficiencies while allowing for modifications and improvements to the design. The 
City owns the drawings and would like to maintain the graphic intent of the drawings 
while ensuring the proper architecture and overall graphic concept is accurate. 
Currently, there has not been an established budget for this project. The intent of 
receiving proposals is to assist the Council to determine the required funding needs. 
Funds would then be allocated based on the scale of the project. 
 
 
The following questions were asked at the Pre-proposal Meeting: 
 
1. “Will prevailing wage rates apply?”  

 
Answer:  Currently, the project does not include installation and would not include 
prevailing wage rates. If the City chose to incorporate installation into the scope of 
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services and the entire project cost was over $50,000, then prevailing wage rates would 
be applicable.  
 
 
2. “What would be the timeline for installation? How would this affect the retail 

businesses?” 
 

Answer:  The City downtown retailers are looking forward to the wayfinding signs project 
to begin.  There currently is a street work project in the downtown area that may 
continue through the holiday season. The City will identify by priority the sequence of 
events and the signage priority. This would be negotiated with the successful contractor. 
The full scope of signage could not be completed and installed by the end of December 
2017. The City may possibly select the largest signs and the sign category with a lower 
quantity, and those signs that bring the people to the downtown area, to have priority.  
 
 
3. “Will the installation schedule, if applicable, follow the completion date listed in the 

RFP?” 
 

Answer:  Yes. The current street work should be completed by December and 
completion of ODOT pavement and curb ramps should be done by January. The City 
may execute what can be done in conjunction with the streetscape project. However, 
there are three gateway signs that would be the exception. 
 
 
4. “Can we use our own engineers?” 
 
Answer:  Yes.  
 
 
5. “In the Reference section, how should we list our “in house” experience?” 
 
Answer:  On the Statement of Experience form, the City’s intent is to evaluate your 
proposed Project Team’s experience.  If the Team is comprised of “in house” 
experienced employees, their experience should be listed. Include the projects where 
your firm took the lead that are similar to the scope of services in this RFP. If you are 
using subcontractors, then the subcontractor’s firm, experience, and qualifications 
should be included. 
 

Wayfinding Signs Design and Fabrication RFP  Page 2 of 2 
 


